
1 of 8 

Chairperson:  Thomas Lutzow 
Vice-Chairperson:  Maria Perez 
Secretary:  Michael Davis 
Senior Executive Assistant:  Jodi Mapp, 257-5202 

MILWAUKEE COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD 

Thursday, June 21, 2018 - 8:00 A.M. 
Zoofari Conference Center 

9715 West Bluemound Road 

MINUTES 

PRESENT: Robert Curry, *Kathie Eilers, Rachel Forman, Sheri Johnson, Walter Lanier, Jon 
Lehrmann, Thomas Lutzow, Mary Neubauer, Maria Perez, and Brenda Wesley 

EXCUSED: Michael Davis and Duncan Shrout  

*Board Member Kathie Eilers was not present at the time the roll was called but joined the
meeting shortly thereafter. 

SCHEDULED ITEMS: 

NOTE:  All Informational Items are Informational Only Unless Otherwise Directed by the 
Board. 

1. Welcome. 

Chairman Lutzow greeted Board Members and welcomed the audience to the June 21, 
2018, Mental Health Board meeting. 

2. Approval of the Minutes from the April 26, 2018, Milwaukee County Mental Health 
Board Meeting. 

MOTION BY: (Forman) Approve the Minutes from the April 26, 2018, Milwaukee 
County Mental Health Board Meeting.  7-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Lanier) 
AYES:  Curry, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, and Wesley – 7 
NOES: 0 
EXCUSED: Eilers - 1 

3. Universal Health Services Contract for the Provision of Acute Psychiatric Services 
Update. 

Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

Mr. Lappen indicated the update related to this item is the result of work done by the 
negotiation team.  The final contract was loosely targeted for consideration at this meeting. 

2



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

June 21, 2018 2 of 8 

However, negotiations continue.  Progress is being made moving the process closer to the 
submission of a final product.  The challenging items are few but complicated given the list 
of requirements added based on feedback from the Mental Health Board’s Joint Task 
Force, the Mental Health Task Force, and the Milwaukee Health Care Partnership.  This 
contract is proving to be much more complicated and inclusive, especially as it relates to 
the provision of care, statutory responsibilities, and funding source, than anything being 
done elsewhere.  Mr. Lappen stated there are no issues with rates or the project as a 
whole.  Both the Behavioral Health Division and Universal Health Services are having 
outstanding details reviewed by their respective legal teams.  At this point, no further 
delays are anticipated.  The projected transition will occur approximately the end of 
2020/beginning of 2021. 

Questions and comments ensued. 

4. Housing Division Update. 

Jim Mathy, Director, Housing Division, Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) 
Eric Collins-Dyke, Outreach Services Manager, Housing Division, DHHS 

Mr. Mathy explained Housing First is an initiative started in 2015 that addresses and 
focuses on breaking the cycle of chronic homelessness without prerequisites for treatment 
while offering treatment support and resources with the goal of placing individuals in 
housing as quickly as possible.  Mr. Mathy went on to discuss the key principles of Housing 
First, its origination, and major themes of approach. 

Mr. Collins-Dyke provided information on outreach, including shelter outreach and tracking 
of that data; staffing; and the Residency Advisory Council. 

Mr. Mathy continued by discussing the housing navigation model, which is a big part of the 
program’s success; housing assistant payment subsidy; case management services; 
program evaluator case studies; the reduction of mental health crisis utilization, emergency 
room utilization, law enforcement exposure, and emergency shelter usage; and HMO 
Housing First usage. 

Questions and comments ensued. 

5. Mental Health Board Governance on Strategic Planning Summary of Findings. 

Brett Remington, Blue Rock WI 

Mr. Remington stated over the course of several months, he consolidated a list of 
observations and recommendations for consideration, discussion, and action by the Board.  
The recommendations, if implemented, will fortify the performance and the sustainability of 
the Mental Health Board.  The Strategic Planning Committee has met to discuss and 
evaluate the findings and is in the process of developing an agenda for the proposed 
September Board retreat, which will be the first of its kind for this group.  The Strategic 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

June 21, 2018 3 of 8 

Planning Committee will share the objectives and planned activities of the retreat in the 
upcoming weeks. 

6. Bylaws Amendments. 

Colleen Foley, Deputy, Corporation Counsel 

Ms. Foley explained the amendments being presented are in the same vein of continuous 
improvement and pruning.  Further refinement of the Bylaws is an attempt to provide 
additional clarity.  The first amendment relates to specific descriptions of Board Member 
terms.  The second amendment changes Article 7, which refers to the Board’s committees, 
to include new language creating a Chair Emeritus who would serve on the Board’s 
Executive Committee.  In recognition of value and knowledge, the position would be held 
by the immediate past Chairperson of the Board. 

MOTION BY: (Eilers) Approve the Mental Health Board’s Bylaws AS 
AMENDED.  8-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Lanier) 
AYES: Curry, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, 

and Wesley – 8 
NOES: 0 
EXCUSED: 0 

7. Administrative Update. 

Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division (BHD) 

Mr. Lappen highlighted key activities and issues related to BHD operations.  He provided 
an update on two new grant awards from the State as part of the Federal initiative targeting 
opioids.  Treatment services include residential treatment, recovery house/outpatient plus, 
day treatment, and individual and family counseling.  Recovery support services will also 
be provided. 

Nurse recruitment efforts by Kane Communications, with the assistance of Human 
Resources and BHD’s Chief Nursing Officer, have again proven successful as all positions 
are filled.  Staffing is no longer in crisis, and mandating overtime has been reduced.  Even 
though BHD is currently in a stable staffing pattern, recruitment continues due to the 
competitive nature of these positions.  There will be continued focus on retention to ensure 
adequate staffing through closure. 

As a side note, Mr. Lappen announced that after discussions with the Sheriff’s Department, 
the Sheriff has agreed to move forward with a collaboration with BHD and make a long-
term commitment for a multi-jurisdictional Crisis Assessment and Response Team (CART).  
This collaboration will expand CART to six teams and include the Sheriff’s Department for 
the first time.  There is a position in place within the budget that aligns with this new effort.  
A Captain with mental health experience designated by the Sheriff will be assigned to the 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

June 21, 2018 4 of 8 

Team to assist with procedure and protocol.  The new initiative is slated to move forward 
as quickly as July. 

Questions and comments ensued. 

Item #s 8, 9, and 10 were considered together. 

8. Mental Health Board Finance Committee Professional Services Contracts 
Recommendations. 

 2017 and 2018 Contract Amendments
 Netsmart Technologies, Inc.

Jennifer Bergersen, Chief of Operations, Behavioral Health Division 

Professional Services Contracts focus on facility-based programming, supports functions 
that are critical to patient care, and are necessary to maintain hospital and crisis services 
licensure.  Background information was provided on the information technology services 
the contracted agency provides.  Approvals would be for Amendments to 2017 and 2018 
Contracts. 

Ms. Bergersen shared an update on Netsmart’s contract and progress with ongoing efforts 
related to Electronic Medical Record Optimization.  Additional information regarding the 
request to retroactively approve funds for services rendered in 2017 was explained. 

The Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend approval of the 2017 and 
2018 Contract Amendments delineated in the corresponding report to the Board. 

SEE ITEM 10 FOR BOARD ACTION 

9. Mental Health Board Finance Committee Purchase-of-Service Contracts 
Recommendation. 

 2018 Contract Amendments

Brian McBride, Interim Director, Children’s Community Services and Wraparound 
Milwaukee, Behavioral Health Division (BHD) 
Amy Lorenz, Director, Community Access to Recovery Services, BHD 

Purchase-of-Service Contracts for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services 
and Substance Use Disorder Services were reviewed.  Mr. McBride and Ms. Lorenz 
provided an overview detailing the various program contracts.  Approvals would be for 
2018 Contract Amendments. 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

June 21, 2018 5 of 8 

The Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend approval of the 2018 
Purchase-of-Service Contract Amendments delineated in the corresponding report to the 
Board. 

SEE ITEM 10 FOR BOARD ACTION 

10.  Mental Health Board Finance Committee Fee-for-Service Agreements 
Recommendation. 

Brian McBride, Interim Director, Children’s Community Services and Wraparound 
Milwaukee, Behavioral Health Division (BHD) 
Amy Lorenz, Director, Community Access to Recovery Services, BHD 

Fee-for-Service Agreements for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services 
and Substance Use Disorder Services were reviewed.  Mr. McBride and Ms. Lorenz 
provided an overview detailing the various program agreements, which provide a broad 
range of rehabilitation and support services to adults with mental health and/or substance 
use disorders and children with serious emotional disturbances. 

The Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend approval of Amendments to 
the 2018 Fee-for-Service Agreements delineated in the corresponding report to the Board. 

MOTION BY: (Perez) Approve the 2017 and 2018 Professional Services 
Contract Amendments, the 2018 Purchase-of-Service Contract 
Amendments, and the 2018 Fee-for-Service Agreement   
Amendments as Delineated in the Corresponding Reports for  
Item #s 8, 9, and 10.  8-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Eilers) 
AYES: Curry, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, 

and Wesley – 8 
NOES: 0 

11.  Mental Health Board Quality Committee Update. 

Jennifer Bergersen, Chief of Operations, Behavioral Health Division 

Board Member Neubauer, Chairwoman of the Quality Committee, reviewed topics 
addressed at the Quality Committee’s quarterly meeting.  She discussed the analysis of 
the key performance indicator dashboard and how formats have been changed to make 
dashboards more user friendly, the Sentinel Event Committee’s annual quality summary, 
the seclusion and restraint first quarter report, Wraparound Milwaukee’s annual report, the 
hospital transfer waitlist, the Environment of Care annual report and management plans, 
and the status of updated policies and procedures. 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

June 21, 2018 6 of 8 

Ms. Bergersen informed the Board the Environment of Care annual report and 
management plans will be brought before the Board for consideration at the August 
meeting. 

Questions and comments ensued. 

12.  Medical Executive Report and Credentialing and Privileging Recommendations. 

Dr. John Schneider, Chief Medical Officer, Behavioral Health Division 

Dr. Schneider provided a summary of the Medical Executive Committee recommendations 
related to medical staff credentialing. 

MOTION BY: (Perez) Adjourn into Closed Session under the provisions of 
Wisconsin Statutes Section 19.85(1)(c) for the purpose of  
considering employment or performance evaluation data for  
public employees over which the Board has jurisdiction and  
exercises responsibility.  Some or all of the information   
discussed may also be subject to confidentiality under Section 
146.38, Stats. as it relates to Item 12.  At the conclusion of the  
Closed Session, the Board may reconvene in Open Session to  
take whatever action(s) it may deem necessary on the aforesaid 
item.  7-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Lanier) 
AYES:  Curry, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, and Perez – 7 
NOES: 0 
EXCUSED: Wesley - 1 

The Board convened into Closed Session at 9:39 a.m. to discuss Item 12 and reconvened 
back into Open Session at approximately 9:47 a.m.  The roll was taken, and all Board 
Members were present. 

MOTION BY: (Eilers) Approve the Medical Staff Credentialing Report and 
Medical Executive Committee Recommendations.  8-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Neubauer) 
AYES: Curry, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, 

and Wesley – 8 
NOES: 0 
EXCUSED: 0 

13.  Employment Agreements. 

Dr. Schneider, Chief Medical Officer, Behavioral Health Division 

Dr. Schneider explained the corresponding employment agreements are for the newly 
created position of Advanced Nurse Prescriber-Psych and stipulate total compensation and 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

June 21, 2018 7 of 8 

reasonable notice requirements.  Due to the significant time, effort, and expense involved 
in recruiting psychiatric practitioners, the employment agreements serve as a means of 
enhancing retention for these professionals, which continue to be in high demand and 
short supply both locally and nationally. 

The Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend approval of the Employment 
Agreements to the Board. 

MOTION BY: (Perez) Approve the Advanced Nurse Prescriber Psych 
Employment Agreements as Delineated in the Corresponding 
Report.  8-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Eilers) 
AYES: Curry, Eilers, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, 

and Wesley – 8 
NOES: 0 
EXCUSED: 0 

14.  Adjournment. 

Chairman Lutzow ordered the meeting adjourned. 

This meeting was recorded.  The aforementioned agenda items were not necessarily 
considered in agenda order.  The official copy of these minutes and subject reports, along with 
the audio recording of this meeting, is available on the Milwaukee County Behavioral Health 
Division/Mental Health Board web page. 

Length of meeting:  8:01 a.m. to 10:36 a.m. 

Adjourned, 

Jodi Mapp
Senior Executive Assistant 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

The next meeting for the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board will be on 
Thursday, July 12, 2018, @ 8:00 a.m. at the 

Zoofari Conference Center 
9715 West Bluemound Road 

TOPIC:  2019 Budget Presentation and Approval 

Visit the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Web Page at: 

http://county.milwaukee.gov/BehavioralHealthDivi7762/Mental-Health-Board.htm 

http://county.milwaukee.gov/BehavioralHealthDivi7762/Mental-Health-Board.htm


SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

June 21, 2018 8 of 8 

The June 21, 2018, meeting minutes of the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board are 
hereby submitted for approval at the next scheduled regular meeting of the Milwaukee 
County Mental Health Board. 

Chairman Thomas Lutzow for Michael Davis, Secretary 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 



Chairperson:  Thomas Lutzow 
Vice-Chairperson:  Maria Perez 
Secretary:  Michael Davis 
Senior Executive Assistant:  Jodi Mapp, 257-5202 

MILWAUKEE COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD 
BUDGET MEETING 

Thursday, July 12, 2018 - 8:00 A.M. 
Zoofari Conference Center 

9715 West Bluemound Road 

MINUTES 

PRESENT: Michael Davis, Rachel Forman, Sheri Johnson, *Walter Lanier, Jon Lehrmann, 
Thomas Lutzow, Mary Neubauer, Maria Perez, Duncan Shrout, and 
Brenda Wesley 

EXCUSED: Kathie Eilers 
ABSENT: Robert Curry 

*Board Member Walter Lanier was not present at the time the roll was called but joined the
meeting shortly thereafter. 

SCHEDULED ITEMS: 

NOTE:  All Informational Items are Informational Only Unless Otherwise Directed by the 
Board. 

1. Welcome. 

Chairman Lutzow greeted Board Members and welcomed the audience to the July 12, 
2018, Mental Health Board Budget meeting. 

2. Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division 2019 Budget Narrative Presentation 
and Consideration. 

Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 
Jeanne Dorff, Fiscal Administrator, Department of Health and Human Services 

Ms. Dorff began by directing the Board’s attention to typographical errors in the Budget 
Narrative found on Pages 14 and 20, which are in the process of being corrected.  She 
explained the tax levy reduction and its impact on costs to continue, including fringe 
benefits, cost increases, salary increases, and contracting services increases.  She 
emphasized how rearranging priorities was necessary to achieve new initiatives resulting 
in increased costs being absorbed without cutting services. 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

Budget Meeting 

July 12, 2018 2 of 3 

Ms. Dorff indicated the “Impact on Reserves” line item reflects initiatives the Board 
approved for implementation.  Reserve funds would be used for these initiatives and are 
not part of the Operating Budget.  She presented a detailed overview of the Division’s 
2019 Budget.  Significant changes highlighted include psychiatric technician (psych tech) 
positions, Recovery Support Coordination Case Management, the expansion of Bridge 
Housing, and Outpatient Plus. 

Mr. Lappen provided additional highlights on continuing initiatives, which include the Peer 
Respite Program, the Sheriff Department’s collaboration with the Behavioral Health 
Division and their long-term commitment for a multi-jurisdictional Crisis Assessment and 
Response Team (CART), Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) partnerships, and the 
transportation initiative. 

Changing from Purchase-of-Service Contracts to Fee-for-Service Agreements was 
discussed at length. 

MOTION BY: (Perez) Approve the Behavioral Health Division’s 2019 
Recommended Budget.  8-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Shrout) 
AYES: Davis, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Shrout, 

and Wesley – 8 
NOES: 0 

3. Adjournment. 

Chairman Lutzow acknowledged this would be Deputy Corporation Counsel Colleen 
Foley’s last Board meeting.  He thanked Ms. Foley for her service and support to the 
Board. 

Ms. Foley thanked the Board and Behavioral Health Division Administrative staff stating it 
has been her pleasure serving as the Board’s legal advisor. 

MOTION BY: (Shrout) Adjourn.  8-0 
MOTION 2ND BY: (Lanier) 
AYES: Davis, Forman, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Shrout, 

and Wesley - 8 
NOES: 0 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

Budget Meeting 

July 12, 2018 3 of 3 

This meeting was recorded.  The official copy of these minutes and subject reports, along with 
the audio recording of this meeting, is available on the Milwaukee County Behavioral Health 
Division/Mental Health Board web page. 

Length of meeting:  8:08 a.m. to 9:05 a.m. 

Adjourned, 

Jodi Mapp
Senior Executive Assistant 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

The next regular meeting for the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board is 
Thursday, August 23, 2018, @ 8:00 a.m. at 

a Location to be Determined 

Visit the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Web Page at: 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance#MCMHBrecords 

The July 12, 2018, Budget meeting minutes of the Milwaukee County Mental Health 
Board are hereby submitted for approval at the next scheduled regular meeting of the 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board. 

Michael Davis, Secretary 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance#MCMHBrecords


COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 
Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: August 14, 2018 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT: Report from the Administrator, Behavioral Health Division, Providing an 
Administrative Update 

Background 

The purpose of this standing report is to highlight key activities or issues related to the 
Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division since the previous Board meeting and provide 
ongoing perspectives to the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board regarding the work of the 
organization and its leadership. 

Discussion 

High Quality and Accountable Service Delivery 

 Community Based System of Care

The Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division (BHD) is transforming the system of 
behavioral health care in Milwaukee County into a best practice model of integrated 
care.  BHD is moving away from being a provider of inpatient acute psychiatric care to 
expand community-wide access to high quality care focused on prevention, treatment, 
intervention, and overall health.  To do this, BHD is introducing a new contracting and 
evaluation process designed to increase access to high quality behavioral health services 
in Milwaukee County. 

New contract performance measures and fee-for-service contract regulations are 
designed to ensure more people receive the highest quality services at the most 
affordable cost (for BHD).  This initiative may require change for some providers.  
However, BHD believes these changes will ultimately help the system empower safe, 
healthy, meaningful lives through connections that support recovery.  Fee-for-Service 
Agreements will allow BHD to use limited resources to connect more people with high 
quality services.  The addition of contract performance metrics fulfills the Mental Health 
Board and Legislative Audit Bureau (LAB) requirements and ensures individuals receive 
high quality services through contracts that include performance measures. 

4



Administrative Update 
08/14/2018 
Page 2 

The Request for Proposals (RFP)/Request for Information (RFI) process is fully 

transparent and an important step in our work to make high quality care accessible to 

more people. 

 All open RFPs/RFIs are shared on the Milwaukee County Procurement Portal.
 All interested providers who meet the requirements of the RFP/RFI have an

equal opportunity to submit a bid.
 The RFP/RFI process ensures interested providers are aware of all expectations

they will be accountable to fulfill.
 All BHD contracts are approved by the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board

and rooted in BHD’s mission to provide the best quality care for those in need.

BHD is doing everything we can to work closely with current and potential providers to 
increase access to high quality care with limited resources. 

Other Topics of Interest 

 City-County Heroin Opioid Cocaine Task Force (CCHOCTF)

The Task Force has held two community engagement sessions:  June 9, 2018, at 
St. Joseph’s Hospital Klieger Auditorium and July 24, 2018, at the Mitchell Street Library.  
A third is scheduled for Thursday, August 16, 2018, at the Oak Creek Civic Center.  The 
sessions were focused on getting community feedback on the draft proposal for a 
community work plan around prevention and treatment.  I led the “Treatment” 
breakout session during the July 24th event.  The event was very well attended. 

My group included six individuals in active treatment/recovery, two Child Protective 
Service workers from SaintA, two public health nurses, a post-graduate researcher, two 
community activists, two teachers, three representatives from BHD contracted 
treatment providers, and a number of individuals who identified themselves as 
concerned citizens.  The group was tasked with creating a list of priorities for the work 
plan goal of expanding access to treatment, from which the larger group was asked to 
vote for their top choice.  The group identified: 

 Withdrawal Management - same day service, availability at all hospital
emergency rooms, and specialty services for pregnant females

 Ongoing Support Post-Residential Treatment -  relapse prevention and mental
health care

 More treatment facilities
 Bridge Housing - especially for those with zero income and for families

https://countymilwaukee.bonfirehub.com/portal/?tab=openOpportunities


Administrative Update 
08/14/2018 
Page 3 

 Transitional Housing - support from peers/counselors, especially for those with
zero income and for families

 Parity in Reimbursement - treat Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse (AODA) needs like
any other health issue; stop bed day, Intensive Outpatient (IOP) session, and
Medication Assisted Treatment  (MAT) limits; blood work; etc.

 Allow for longer authorizations for service, increase funding for Medical
Assistance (MA) or uninsured in residential, transitional care, IOP, etc.

 Expand Dialectical Behavior Therapy (DBT) for substance use
 Improve awareness of treatment options and provide “cross system” education,

i.e. child welfare workers, courts, hospital social workers, etc.
 Reduce stigma regarding people with addictions and those in treatment, fight

back against “Not in My Back Yard” (NIMBY) responses to sober housing,
treatment facilities

 Educate the community on the disease model of substance dependence

The larger group overwhelmingly supported expanding sober and bridge housing and 
same day access to Medication Assisted Treatment, both of which are currently being 
expanded in the BHD network and are addressed in the 2019 Proposed Budget. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Mike Lappen, Administrator 
Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division 
Department of Health and Human Services 



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 

Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: August 23, 2018 

TO: Tom Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Mary Jo Meyers, Director, Department of Health and Human Services 

Approved by Mike Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT:  Report from the Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 

Requesting Authorization to Execute a 2018 Professional Services Contract 

Amendment and a 2019 Contract for Cleaning Services; and 2018 

Professional Services Contract Amendments for Consultation and Fiscal 

Oversight Services 

Issue 

Wisconsin Statute 51.41(10) requires approval for any contract related to mental health 

(substance use disorder) with a value of at least $100,000.  No contract or contract adjustment 

shall take effect until approved by the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board.  Per the statute, 

the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services is requesting authorization for 

BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to execute mental health and substance use 

contracts for 2018, and 2019. 

Background 

Approval of the recommended contract allocations will allow BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient 

Hospital to provide a broad range of rehabilitation and support services to adults with mental health 

and/or substance use disorders and children with serious emotional disturbances. 

Professional Services Contracts 

Clean Power, LLC - $1,364,536.56 

This is an agreement for cleaning services for the Milwaukee County Behavioral Health 

Division, Mental Health Complex. BHD is requesting $24,200.28 for 2018 and $1,340,336.28 

for 2019. The increase in funds are a result of the contract negotiations that resulted in BHD 

establishing an updated scope of work, performance measures, compliance indicators, and an 

employee wage increase that are now included in the contract. The total contract amount is now 

$2,680,672.56. 

New Resources Consulting dba Clinical Path Consulting - $14,375  

This was a professional services agreement that provided BHD with a Clinical Informaticist, and 

Principal Trainer position that was critical to the success of the Our Avatar (EMR Optimization) 

Project as well as training and oversight of the BHD clinical documentation tools. Clinical Path 

5



2 

Consulting provided the consultant to fill the two positions, and the Clinical Informaticist 

consultant has since been hired as a full time BHD Associate, and the Principal Trainer position 

is now vacant. The funds are being requested to pay the outstanding invoices that cover the time 

period when the Clinical Informaticist position was being transitioned from a Clinical Path 

Consultant to a full time BHD Associate, and the Principal Trainer position was vacated. The 

total contract amount is now $224,775. The funds are being requested for 2018.  

Trempealeau County Health Care - $51,000 

This contract is to assure clarity of fiscal obligations for care services provided to individuals 

placed by Milwaukee County at the Trempealeau County Health Care Center. The total contract 

is now $150,000. 

Fiscal Summary 

The amount of spending requested in this report is summarized below. 

Mary Jo Meyers, Director 

Department of Health and Human Services 

Cc: Maria Perez, Finance Chairperson 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 2018 Amount 2019 Amount 

Total 

Contract 

Amount 

Clean Power Amendment $24,200.28 $1,340,336.28 $2,680,672.56 

Clinical Path 

Consulting Amendment $14,375 $224,775 

Trempealeau 

County Health 

Care Amendment $51,000 $150,000 

Total $89,575.28 $1,340,336.28 $3,055,447.56 



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 
Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: August 23, 2018 

TO: Tom Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Mary Jo Meyer, Director, Department of Health and Human Services 

Approved by Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT:  Report from the Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 

Requesting Authorization to Execute 2018 Purchase-of-Service Contract 

Amendments with a Value in Excess of $100,000 for the Behavioral Health 

Division for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services and 

Substance Use Disorder Services 

Issue 

Wisconsin Statute 51.41(10) requires approval for any contract related to mental health 

(substance use disorder) with a value of at least $100,000.  No contract or contract adjustment 

shall take effect until approved by the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board.  Per the statute, 

the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services is requesting authorization for 

BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to execute mental health and substance use 

contracts for 2018. 

Background 

Approval of the recommended contract allocations will allow BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient 

Hospital to provide a broad range of rehabilitation and support services to adults with mental health 

and/or substance use disorders and children with serious emotional disturbances. 

Purchase-of-Service Contracts 

Family Strong, LLC - $55,000 

The Vendor provides Family Engagement and Advocacy Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children and their families. The total contract amount is now $280,000. The funds 

are being requested for 2018. 

Our Space, Inc. - $20,833 

The Vendor provides a Psychosocial drop-in center which provides a casual environment for 

education, recreation, socialization, pre-vocational activities, and occupational therapy 

opportunities for individuals with severe and persistent mental illness and/or co-occurring 

disorders.  The drop-in center model is based on a concept of membership and utilizes peer support 

as a central tenant.  Our Space provides individuals with a mechanism of social connectedness so 

that they may further their own recovery. Our Space, Inc. will be providing an additional full time 

6



2 

Peer Support to assist consumers in the post booking stabilization strategy. The total contract 

amount is now $271,795. An additional $8,833.20 is being requested for 2018 and $11,999.80 is 

being request for 2019. 

Fiscal Summary 

The amount of spending requested in this report is summarized below. 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 2018 Increase 2019 

Amount 

Total 

Contract 

Amount 

Family Strong, LLC Amendment $55,000 $280,000 

Our Space, Inc. Amendment $8,833.20 $11,999.80 $271,795 

Total $63,833.20 $11,999.80 $551,795 

Mary Jo Meyers, Director 

Department of Health and Human Services 

Cc: Maria Perez, Finance Chairperson 



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 

Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: August 23, 2018 

TO: Tom Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Mary Jo Meyers, Director, Department of Health and Human Services 

Approved by Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT:  Report from the Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 

Requesting Authorization to Execute 2018 and 2019 Fee-for-Service 

Agreements with a Value in Excess of $100,000 for the Behavioral Health 

Division for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services and 

Substance Use Disorder Services 

Issue 

Wisconsin Statute 51.41(10) requires approval for any contract related to mental health 

(substance use disorder) with a value of at least $100,000.  No contract or contract adjustment 

shall take effect until approved by the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board.  Per the statute, 

the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services is requesting authorization for 

BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to execute mental health and substance use 

contracts for 2018, and 2019. 

Background 

Approval of the recommended contract allocation projections will allow 

BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to provide a broad range of rehabilitation and 

support services to adults with mental health and/or substance use disorders and children with 

serious emotional disturbances. 

Fee-for-Service Agreements 

A Clearer Vision dba Eliana Homes - $131,510.32 

This vendor provides Residential Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is requesting an 

additional $131,510.32 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $263,020.64.  

A Place for Miracles - $184,000 

This vendor provides Residential Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is requesting an 

additional $82,000 for 2018 and $102,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $204,000. 

7



2 
 

Access Recovery Mental Health Services - $412,623 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $155,623 for 2018 and $257,000 for 2019. The total contract amount 

will be $514,000.  

 

Alternative Family Services, LLC - $56,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $56,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $155,000.  

 

Alternatives in Psychological Consultation, S.C. - $2,213,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $2,213,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $4,441,512.67.  

 

Arunaobi Integrated Medical Behavioral Health Clinic - $54,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $54,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $153,000.  

 

Phoenix Care Systems, Inc. dba Bell Therapy, Inc. - $6,715,000 

This vendor provides Residential Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is requesting $6,715,000 

for 2019. The total contract amount will be $13,004,724.20.  

 

Brotoloc South, Inc. - $154,000 

This vendor provides Residential Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is requesting $154,000 

for 2019. The total contract amount will be $346,716.70.  

 

Community Living Arrangements, Inc. - $51,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $51,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $168,482.  

 

Crossroads Behavioral Health Services - $10,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting $10,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $69,130.  

 

East Point Residential Facility, LLC - $137,874.37 

This vendor provides Residential Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is requesting an 

additional $32,874.37 for 2018 and $105,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be 

$210,000.  

 

Easter Seals Southeast WI, Inc. - $380,897 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $52,897 for 2018 and $328,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will 

be $656,000.  

 

Empathetic Counseling Services, Inc. - $203,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $203,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $971,395.  



3 
 

Epitomized Living, LLC - $99,000 

This vendor provides Residential Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is requesting $99,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $198,000.  

 

Goodwill Industries of Southeastern Wisconsin - $301,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $301,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $637,236.  

 

Guest House of Milwaukee - $1,517,328.44 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $257,328.44 for 2018 and $1,260,000 for 2019. The total contract 

amount will be $2,262,671.56.  

 

Alternatives in Psychological Consultation, S.C. - $1,312,000 

This vendor provides Targeted Case Management Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $1,312,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $2,829,725.  

 

Horizon Healthcare, Inc. - $504,000 

This vendor provides Targeted Case Management Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $504,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $1,275,725.  

 

La Causa, Inc. - $713,000 

This vendor provides Targeted Case Management Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $713,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $1,433,276.  

 

MCFI dba Whole Health Medical - $1,133,000 

This vendor provides Targeted Case Management Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $1,133,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $2,429,498.  

 

Milwaukee Mental Health Associates - $826,344 

This vendor provides Targeted Case Management Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $117,344 for 2018 and $709,000 for 2019. The total contract amount 

will be $1,300,656.  

 

Outreach Community Health Associates - $464,000 

This vendor provides Targeted Case Management Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $464,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $1,235,725.  

 

Wisconsin Community Service - $1,138,000 

This vendor provides Targeted Case Management Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $1,138,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $2,461,208.  

 

Genesis Behavioral Health Services, Inc. - $770,000 

This vendor provides Residential Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is requesting $770,000 

for 2019. The total contract amount will be $1,621,472.  

 



4 
 

Matt Talbott - $1,186,000 

This vendor provides Residential Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is requesting $1,186,000 

for 2019. The total contract amount will be $2,392,648.  

 

Meta House - $1,376,000 

This vendor provides Residential Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is requesting $1,376,000 

for 2019. The total contract amount will be $2,852,125.  

 

United Community Center - $3,197,205 

This vendor provides Residential Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is requesting an 

additional $726,205 for 2018 and $2,471,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be 

$4,942,000.  

 

Homes for Independent Living of WI, LLC - $802,364.20 

This vendor provides Residential Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is requesting an 

additional $159,364.20 for 2018 and $643,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be 

$1,286,000.  

 

Integrity Residential Services, Inc. - $165,906 

This vendor provides Residential Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is requesting $165,906 

for 2019. The total contract amount will be $331,812.  

 

Jefferson Crest, LLC - $679,504.92 

This vendor provides Residential Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is requesting an 

additional $89,504.92 for 2018 and $590,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be 

$1,180,000.  

 

Jewish Family Services, Inc. - $214,779.02 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $84,779.02 for 2018 and $130,000 for 2019. The total contract amount 

will be $260,000.  

 

JusticePoint, Inc. - $4,069,857 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $2,008,857 for 2018 and $2,061,000 for 2019. The total contract amount 

will be $4,122,000.  

 

Matt Talbott Recovery Services, Inc. - $50,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting $50,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $1,332,976.10.  

 

Meta House - $269,860.30 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $87,860.34 for 2018 and $182,000 for 2019. The total contract amount 

will be $364,000.  

 



5 
 

Milwaukee Mental Health Associates, Inc. - $440,625.30 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $218,625.30 for 2018 and $222,000 for 2019. The total contract amount 

will be $444,000.  

 

Multicultural Community Services, Inc. - $368,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting $368,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $748,313.  

 

Mystic Creek - $427,115 

This vendor provides Residential Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is requesting an 

additional $103,115 for 2018 and $324,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be 

$648,000.  

 

Our Safe Place, Inc. - $226,800 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting $226,800 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $453,600.  

 

Multicultural Community Services, Inc. - $368,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting $368,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $748,313.  

 

Outreach Community Health Centers - $500,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting $500,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $1,035,619.93.  

 

Professional Services Group - $286,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $133,000 for 2018 and $153,000 for 2019. The total contract amount 

will be $306,000.  

 

Project Access, Inc. - $853,740.91 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $421,740.91 for 2018 and $432,000 for 2019. The total contract amount 

will be $864,000.  

 

Sebastian Family Psychology Practice, LLC - $630,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $305,000 for 2018 and $325,000 for 2019. The total contract amount 

will be $650,000.  

 

St. Charles - $110,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $30,000 for 2018 and $80,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will 

be $160,000.  

 



6 

United Community Center - $133,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting $133,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $1,842,474.  

Wisconsin Community Services - $1,367,924 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting $1,367,924 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $2,735,848.  

Word of Hope Ministries - $20,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting $20,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $109,474.  

La Causa, Inc. - $1,788,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting $1,788,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $4,309,895.  

MCFI Home Care - $325,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting an additional $125,000 for 2018 and $200,000 for 2019. The total contract amount 

will be $400,000.  

MCFI dba Whole Health Medical - $1,768,000 

This vendor provides Residential Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is requesting $1,768,000 

for 2019. The total contract amount will be $5,329,148.  

MCFI dba Whole Health Medical - $2,280,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for CARS Consumers. BHD is 

requesting $2,280,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $4,801,895.  

Adkins Counseling Services, LLC - $618,982 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $182,982 for 

2018 and $436,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $872,000. 

Alternatives in Psychological Consultation, SC - $7,913,296.89 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional 

$2,913,296.89 for 2018 and $5,000,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $9,448,000. 

American United Cab - $411,003 

This vendor provides Transportation Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving 

children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $411,003,000 for 2019. The 

total contract amount will be $822,006. 



7 
 

Anu Family Services, Inc. - $503,687.00 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $503,687 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $1,007,374. 

 

Bell Therapy, Inc (Willowglen) - $99,000 

This vendor provides Residential Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving 

children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting $99,000 for 2019. The total contract amount 

will be $198,000.  

 

Benevolence First, Inc. - $60,000 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $60,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $152,662. 

 

Bloom, Center for Art and Integrated Therapies - $41,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $41,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $101,000. 

 

Bracy Psychological Services and Stress Management - $232,553 

This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $39,553 for 

2018 and $193,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $386,000. 

 

Butterflyz, LLC, dba Home Away from Home - $200,000 

This vendor provides Residential Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving 

children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting $200,000 for 2019. The total contract 

amount will be $358,047.  

 

Children’s Service Society of Wisconsin - $40,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $40,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $193,655. 

 

Childynamics - $85,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $85,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $130,136. 

 

Chileda Institute, Inc. - $5,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $5,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $155,000. 

 

 



8 
 

 

Choices to Change - 100,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $100,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $287,845. 

 

Column Rehab Services, Inc. - $50,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $50,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $100,000. 

 

Community Harbor, LLC - $41,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $77,653 for 

2018 and $193,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $386,000. 

 

Connecting Youth Group Home - $300,000 

This vendor provides Residential Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving 

children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting $300,000 for 2019. The total contract 

amount will be $449,000.  

 

Dominion Behavioral Health Services, LLC - $234,312 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $49,312 for 

2018 and $185,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $370,000. 

 

Dr. Morano Consulting - $149,320 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $56,320 for 

2018 and $93,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $186,000. 

 

Eau Claire Academy - $120,000 

This vendor provides Residential Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving 

children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting $120,000 for 2019. The total contract 

amount will be $270,541.  

 

Educates, LLC - $318,014 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $153,014 for 

2018 and $165,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $330,000. 

 

Exodus Family Services, LLC - $105,946 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $30,946 for 

2018 and $75,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $150,000. 

 



9 
 

 

Family Options Counseling - $595,641 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $105,641 for 

2018 and $490,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $980,000. 

 

Forward Choices, LLC - $76,673 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $9,673 for 

2018 and $67,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $134,000. 

 

Fresh Start Counseling Center - $350,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $350,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $700,187. 

 

Genesee Community Services, LLC - $162,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $162,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $342,000. 

 

Grateful Girls – Safe Haven - $100,000 

This vendor provides Residential Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving 

children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting $100,000 for 2019. The total contract 

amount will be $312,727.  

 

Harmony Social Services, CPA, Inc. - $41,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $41,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $484,599. 

 

Harper House – Nehemiah Project - $200,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $200,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $273,008. 

 

Home for the Heart - $100,000 

This vendor provides Residential Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving 

children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting $100,000 for 2019. The total contract 

amount will be $150,000.  

 

Hopgood Youth Home - $450,000 

This vendor provides Residential Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving 

children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting $450,000 for 2019. The total contract 

amount will be $800,366.  

 



10 
 

Horizon Healthcare, Inc. - $40,000 

This vendor provides Residential Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving 

children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting $40,000 for 2019. The total contract amount 

will be $115,000.  

 

House of Love Youth Homes, Inc. - $300,000 

This vendor provides Residential Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving 

children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting $300,000 for 2019. The total contract 

amount will be $553,925.  

 

Human Development Center, Inc. - $1,144,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $1,144,000 

for 2019. The total contract amount will be $2,304,038. 

 

Inspiring Young Women - $60,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $60,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $299,628. 

 

Integrity Family Services, LLC - $1,480,080 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $185,080 for 

2018 and $1,295,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $2,590,000. 

 

Journey House - $150,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $150,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $202,143. 

 

La Causa, Inc. - $6,110,252.18 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional 

$1,430,252.18 for 2018 and $4,680,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $9,360,000. 

 

Lad Lake, Inc. - $336,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $336,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $2,833,816. 

 

Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin and Upper Michigan - $320,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $320,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $1,283,466. 

 

 



11 
 

MCFI Home Care, LLC - $80,013 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $130,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $130,000. 

 

M.D. Therapy, LLC - $460,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $460,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $688,698. 

 

Milwaukee Center for Independence - $26,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $26,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $2,892,557. 

 

Mindstar Counseling, LLC - $120,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $120,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $290,035. 

 

Mt. Castle Transitional Living Services - $500,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $500,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $851,025. 

 

New Choices - $250,159 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $72,159 for 

2018 and an additional $178,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $356,000. 

 

New Horizon Center, Inc. - $160,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $160,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $352,631. 

 

New Leaf Therapies, LLC - $50,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $50,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $102,591. 

 

Norris Adolescent Center - $1,280,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $1,280,000 

for 2019. The total contract amount will be $2,495,974. 

 

 



12 
 

Pathfinders Milwaukee, Inc. - $210,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $87,000 for 

2018 and an additional $123,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $326,000. 

 

Positive Outlook Clinical Services, LLC - $42,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $42,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $109,881. 

 

Psychological Assessment Services, LLC - $137,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $137,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $297,600. 

 

Rawhide, Inc. - $1,000,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $1,000,000 

for 2019. The total contract amount will be $1,131,890. 

 

Right Turn, Inc. - $260,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $260,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $469,153. 

 

Rise Youth and Family Services, LLC - $397,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $236,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $472,000. 

 

Riverstone Counseling and Crisis Services, LLC - $1,886,480 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $581,480 for 

2018 and an additional $1,305,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $2,610,000. 

 

Running Rebels Community Organization - $385,128 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $44,128 for 

2018 and an additional $341,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $682,000. 

 

Sebastian Family Psychology Practice, LLC - $1,357,989 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $78,989 for 

2018 and an additional $1,279,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $2,558,000. 

 

 



13 
 

Servant Manor Strategies, Inc. - $120,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $120,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $127,545. 

 

Servant Manor, Inc. - $540,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $540,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $836,047. 

 

Southwest Key Programs, Inc. - $73,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $73,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $190,610. 

 

Spahn Clinical Services - $126,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $126,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $252,000. 

 

St. Charles Youth and Family Services, Inc. - $6,160,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $6,160,000 

for 2019. The total contract amount will be $10,072,858.23. 

 

Thrive Treatment Services, LLC - $436,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $436,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $775,622. 

 

V.I.C. Living Center, LLC - $200,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $200,000 for 

2019. The total contract amount will be $391,585. 

 

Willowglen Academy – Wisconsin, Inc. - $2,414,032 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $597,032 for 

2018 and an additional $1,817,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $3,634,000. 

 

Wisconsin Community Services, Inc. - $117,000 
This vendor provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 

Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an additional $41,000 for 

2018 and an additional $76,000 for 2019. The total contract amount will be $152,000. 

 

 



14 
 

Fiscal Summary 

 

The amount of spending requested in this report is summarized below.  
 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 

2018 

Increase 

2019 

Amount 

Total 

Contract 

Amount 
A Clearer Vision dba Eliana 

Homes Amendment  

 

$131,510.32 

 

$263,020.64 

A Place for Miracles Amendment $82,000 

 

$102,000 

 

$204,000 

Access Recovery Mental Health 

Services Amendment $155,623 

 

$257,000 

 

$514,000 

Alternative Family Services, LLC Amendment  

 

$56,000 

 

$155,000 

Alternative in Psychological 

Consultation, S.C.  Amendment  

 

$2,213,000 

 

$4,441,512.67 

Arunaobi Integrated Medical 

Behavioral Health Clinic Amendment  

 

$54,000 

 

$153,000 

Phoenix Care Systems, Inc. dba 

Bell Therapy, Inc. Amendment  

 

$6,715,000 

 

$13,004,724.20 

Brotoloc South, Inc. Amendment  

 

$154,000 

 

$346,716.70 

Community Living Arrangements, 

Inc. Amendment  

 

$51,000 

 

$168,482 

Crossroads Behavioral Health 

Services Amendment  

 

$10,000 

 

$69,130 

East Point Residential Facility, 

LLC Amendment $32,874.37 

 

$105,000 $210,000 

Easter Seals Southeast WI, Inc. Amendment $52,897 

 

$328,000 $656,000 

Empathetic Counseling Services, 

Inc. Amendment  

 

$203,000 $971,395 

Epitomized Living, LLC Amendment  

 

$99,000 $198,000 

Goodwill Industries of 

Southeastern, WI Amendment  

 

$301,000 $637,236 

Guest House of Milwaukee Amendment $257,328.44 

 

$1,260,000 $2,262,671.56 

Alternative in Psychological 

Consultation, S.C. Amendment  

 

$1,312,000 $2,829,725 

Horizon Healthcare, Inc.  Amendment  

 

$504,000 $1,275,725 

La Causa, Inc. Amendment  

 

$713,000 $1,433,276 



15 
 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 

2018 

Increase 

2019 

Amount 

Total 

Contract 

Amount 

MCFI dba Whole Health Medical Amendment  

 

$1,133,000 $2,429,498 

Milwaukee Mental Health 

Associates Amendment $117,344 

 

$709,000 $1,300,656 

Outreach Community Health 

Centers Amendment  

 

$464,000 $1,235,725 

Wisconsin Community Services Amendment  

 

$1,138,000 $2,461,208 

Genesis Behavioral Health 

Services, Inc. Amendment  

 

$770,000 $1,621,472 

Matt Talbott Amendment  

 

$1,186,000 $2,392,648 

Meta House Amendment  

 

$1,376,000 $2,852,125 

United Community Center Amendment $726,205 

 

$2,471,000 $4,942,000 

Homes for Independent Living of 

WI, LLC Amendment $159,364.20 

 

$643,000 $1,286,000 

Integrity Residential Services, Inc. Amendment  

 

$165,906 $331,812 

Jefferson Crest, LLC Amendment $89,504.92 

 

$590,000 $1,180,000 

Jewish Family Services, Inc. Amendment $84,779.02 

 

$130,000 $260,000 

JusticePoint, Inc. Amendment $2,008,857 

 

$2,061,000 $4,122,000 

Matt Talbott Recovery Services, 

Inc. Amendment  

 

$50,000 $1,322,976.10 

Meta House Amendment $87,860.34 

 

$182,000 $364,000 

Milwaukee Mental Health 

Associates, Inc. Amendment $218,625.30 

 

$222,000 $444,000 

Multicultural Community 

Services, Inc. Amendment  

 

$368,000 $748,313 

Mystic Creek Amendment $103,115 

 

$368,000 $648,000 

Our Safe Place, Inc. Amendment  

 

$226,800 $453,600 

Outreach Community Health 

Centers Amendment  

 

$500,000 $1,035,619.93 

Professional Services Group Amendment $133,000 

 

$153,000 $306,000 



16 
 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 

2018 

Increase 

2019 

Amount 

Total 

Contract 

Amount 

Project Access Amendment $421,740.91 

 

$432,000 $864,000 

Sebastian Family Psychology 

Practice, LLC Amendment $305,000 

 

$325,000 $650,000 

St. Charles Amendment $30,000 

 

$80,000 $160,000 

Summit Wellness, Inc. Amendment  

 

$762,000 $1,164,252 

United Community Center Amendment  

 

 

$133,000 $1,842,474 

Wisconsin Community Service Amendment  

 

$1,367,924 $2,735,848 

Wisconsin Nazarene 

Compassionate Center Amendment  

 

$82,000 $265,209 

Word of Hope Ministries Amendment  

 

$20,000 $109,474 

La Causa, Inc. Amendment  

 

$1,788,000 $4,309,895 

MCFI Home Care Amendment $125,000 

 

$200,000 $400,000 

MCFI dba Whole Health Medical Amendment  

 

$1,768,000 $5,329,148 

MCFI dba Whole Health Medical Amendment  

 

$2,280,000 $4,801,895 

Adkins Counseling Services, LLC Amendment $182,982 

 

$436,000 $872,000 

Alternatives to Psychological 

Consultation, SC Amendment 

$2,913,296.

89 

 

$5,000,000 $9,448,000 

American United Cab Amendment  

 

$411,003 $822,006 

Anu Family Services, Inc. Amendment  

 

$503,687 $1,007,374 

Bell Therapy, Inc. (Willowglen) Amendment  

 

$99,000 $198,000 

Benevolence First, Inc. Amendment  

 

$60,000 $152,662 

Bloom, Center for Art and 

Integrated Therapies Amendment  

 

$41,000 $101,000 

Bracy Psychological Services & 

Stress Management Amendment  

 

$232,553 $386,000 

Butterflyz, LLC dba Home Away 

from Home Amendment  

 

$200,000 $358,047 



17 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 

2018 

Increase 

2019 

Amount 

Total 

Contract 

Amount 

Children’s Service Society of 

Wisconsin Amendment $40,000 $193,655 

Childynamics Amendment $85,000 $130,136 

Chileda Institute, Inc. Amendment $5,000 $150,000 

Choices to Change Amendment $100,000 $387,845 

Column Rehab Services, Inc. Amendment $50,000 $100,000 

Community Harbor, LLC Amendment $77,653 $193,000 $386,000 

Connecting Youth Group Home Amendment $300,000 $449,000 

Dominion Behavioral Health 

Services, LLC Amendment $49,312 $185,000 $370,000 

Dr. Morano Consulting Amendment $56,320 $93,000 $186,000 

Eau Claire Academy Amendment $120,000 $270,541 

Educates, LLC Amendment $153,014 $165,000 $330,000 

Exodus Family Services, LLC Amendment $30,946 $75,000 $150,000 

Family Options Counseling Amendment $105,641 $490,000 $980,000 

Forward Choices, LLC Amendment $9,673 $67,000 $134,000 

Fresh Start Counseling Center Amendment $350,000 $700,187 

Genesee Community Services, 

LLC Amendment $162,000 $342,000 

Grateful Girls – Safe Haven Amendment $100,000 $312,727 

Harmony Social Services CPA, 

Inc. Amendment $41,000 $484,599 

Harper House – Nehemiah Project Amendment $200,000 $273,008 

Home for the Heart Amendment $100,000 $150,000 

Hopgood Youth Home Amendment $450,000 $800,366 



18 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 

2018 

Increase 

2019 

Amount 

Total 

Contract 

Amount 

Horizon Healthcare, Inc. Amendment $40,000 $115,000 

House of Love Youth Homes, Inc. Amendment $300,000 $553,925 

Human Development Center, Inc. Amendment $1,144,000 $2,304,038 

Inspiring Young Women Amendment $60,000 $299,628 

Integrity Family Services, LLC Amendment $185,080 $1,295,000 $2,590,000 

Journey House Amendment $150,000 $202,143 

La Causa, Inc. Amendment 

$1,430,252.

18 $4,680,000 $9,360,000 

Lad Lake, Inc Amendment $336,000 $2,833,816 

Lutheran Social Services of 

Wisconsin and Upper Michigan Amendment $320,000 $1,283,446 

MCFI Home Care, LLC Amendment $15,013 $65,000 $130,000 

M.D. Therapy, LLC Amendment $460,000 $688,698 

Milwaukee Academy Amendment $780,000 $1,051,357 

Milwaukee Center for 

Independence Amendment $26,000 $2,892,557 

Mindstar Counseling, LLC Amendment $120,000 $290,035 

Mt. Castle Transitional Living 

Services Amendment $500,000 $851,025 

New Choices Amendment $72,159 $178,000 $356,000 

New Horizon Center, Inc. Amendment $160,000 $352,631 

New Leaf Therapies, LLC Amendment $50,000 $102,591 

Norris Adolescent Center Amendment $1,280,000 $2,495,974 

Pathfinders Milwaukee, Inc. Amendment $87,000 $123,000 $326,000 

Positive Outlook Clinical Services, 

LLC Amendment $42,000 $109,881 



19 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 

2018 

Increase 

2019 

Amount 

Total 

Contract 

Amount 

Psychological Assessment 

Services, LLC Amendment $137,000 $297,600 

Rawhide, Inc. Amendment $1,000,000 $1,131,890 

Right Turn, Inc. Amendment $260,000 $469,153 

Rise Youth and Family Services Amendment $161,000 $236,000 $472,000 

Riverstone Counseling and Crisis 

Services, LLC Amendment $581,480 $1,305,000 $2,610,000 

Running Rebels Community 

Organization Amendment $44,128 $341,000 $682,000 

SaintA Amendment $1,405,000 $5,100,602 

Sebastian Family Psychology 

Practice, LLC Amendment $78,989 $1,279,000 $2,558,000 

Servant Manor Strategies, Inc. Amendment $120,000 $127,545 

Servant Manor, Inc. Amendment $540,000 $836,047 

Southwest Key Programs, Inc. Amendment $73,000 $190,610 

Spahn Clinical Services Amendment $35,915 $126,000 $252,000 

St. Charles Youth and Family 

Services, Inc. Amendment $6,160,000 $10,072,858.23 

Thrive Treatment Services, LLC Amendment $436,000 $775,622 

V.I.C. Living Center, LLC Amendment $200,000 $391,585 

Willowglen Academy – 

Wisconsin, Inc. Amendment $597,032 $1,817,000 $3,634,000 

Wisconsin Community Services, 

Inc. Amendment $41,000 $76,000 $152,000 

Total $12,099,005 $76,687,383.32 $163,730,873.03 

Mary Jo Meyers, Director 

Department of Health and Human Services 

Cc: Maria Perez, Finance Chairperson 



8













this risk. The tampering of mechanical door locks was limited to only one event that was immediately taken 

care of. 

• This item will be eliminated in 2018.

MEDICAL EQUIPMENT 

No new clinical equipment was purchased in 2017. Equipment removed from service included emergency 
"crash carts" and ambulatory restraints. The carts were replaced with simple "Go Kits" that include pressure 
dressings, sphygmomanometers, stethoscope, gloves, pen light, scissors, face shield, CPR pocket 
resuscitator and spill kit. Go Kits are located throughout the facility including the exam room of each active 
unit. Spare/replacement kits are available in Central Supply. 

The AEDs that were removed from the crash carts have been redeployed throughout the building. BHD, in 
conjunction with the Milwaukee County Office of Emergency Management (OEM), monitor the units and 
replace pads and batteries as needed. Two spare units are available in Central Supply. 

Suction machines that were removed from the crash carts have also been redeployed to each unit's exam 
room and in various locations throughout BHD. Additional carts are available in Central Supply. 

BHD continues to contract with Universal Hospital Services (UHS) to monitor/ calibrate remaining clinical 
equipment on a regular basis. The UHS inventory of equipment managed by UHS has been updated due to 
the reductions noted above. 

There were no significant reported equipment repairs requested in 2017. Thermometers, glucometer and 

other expendable items are replaced as they fail. 

This goal was met and BHD will continue to monitor and report on equipment repairs. 

EDUCATIONAL GOALS 

In 2017 trainings regarding Active Shooter, Workplace Safety, OSHA Safety, and Fire Safety were completed. 

Completion rates for Workplace Safety and OSHA Safety were at 47%. Fire Safety 89%, and Active Shooter 50%. 
These training topics will be repeated in 2018. Staff assignments have been clarified to better identify and 

communicate expectations. 

Training topics Training topics for 2018 quarterly trainings through BHD or County wide training programs will 
include 4 of the following topics and 85% of staff will achieve a passing score. 

• Regulated Medical Waste

• Active Shooter

• Workplace Safety

• Cyber Security

• OSHA Safety

• Fire Safety

• Emergency Communications

The Environment of Care Committee recommends the following key goals for 2018: 

• To reduce the amount of infectious waste generated to below 50# per month, by eliminating

inappropriate disposal of non-infectious waste and by determine alternate products where

feasible.

• To improve staff knowledge of BHD emergency response plans, and procedures.

4 





















































































































10









11


























































	Item 2
	Item 4
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 10
	Item 11



